Revision Date: August 15, 2023

# Collective Bargaining Agreement

Between the

City of Melrose

And

Melrose Superior Police Officers Association



June 28, 2021 – June 30, 2024

Fiscal Year 2022 to Fiscal Year 2024

# **Table of Contents**

Article 1 - Recognition And Bargaining Unit	1
Article 1.1 - Non-Discrimination	1
Article 2 - Association Activities	1
Article 3 - Direct Deposit	2
Article 4 - Vacations	2
Article 5 - Court Time	2
Article 6 - Funeral Leave	3
Article 7 - Special Leave	3
Article 7.5 - Light Duty And Injured Leave	4
Article 8 - Massachusetts Police Association Activities	6
Article 9 - Uniform And Clothing Allowance	7
Article 10 - Leash Law Control	7
Article 11 - Police Personnel And Auxiliary Police	7
Article 12 - Extra Paid Details	7
Article 13 - Overtime	8
Article 14 - Posting of Overtime and Extra Paid Details	8
Article 15 - Holidays	8
Article 16 - Unused Time Off (Compensatory Time)	9
Article 17 - Disciplinary Action	9

Article 18 - Employee Group Health And Life Insurance	10
Article 19 - Hours Of Duty And Regular Workweek	10
Article 20 - Leave Of Absence Without Pay	11
Article 21 - Health And Safety	11
Article 22 - Grievance Procedure	11
Article 23 - Compensation	13
Article 24 - Management Rights	17
Article 25 - Seniority / Exceptions	17
Article 26 - Police Career Incentive Program	18
Article 27 - Accumulated Sick Leave	18
Article 28 - No Strike	20
Article 28.1 - Drug Testing / Rehabilitation	21
Article 29 - Duration Of Contract	24
Article 30 - Prior Agreements	24
Article 31 - Funding	24
Article 32- Residency	24
Appendix A - Base Pay Rates	
Appendix B - Comp Time for Negotiations	
Appendix C - Police Details	

This Collective Bargaining Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into effect as of June 28, 2021 for a term of three (3) years, between the City of Melrose (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and the Melrose Superior Police Officers (hereinafter referred to as the "Association"). The Agreement is designed to maintain and promote a harmonious relationship between the City and its employees who are within the provisions of this Agreement, in order that more efficient and progressive public service may be rendered.

#### **ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION AND BARGAINING UNIT**

The City hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive representative and certified bargaining agent for all employees of the City of Melrose Police Department, employed as Lieutenants, Lieutenant Inspectors, Sergeants, Sergeant Inspectors and excluding therefrom the Chief of Police (the "Chief") and all other employees of the Melrose Police Department and of the City. It shall be unlawful for any employee to engage in, induce, or encourage any strike, work stoppage, slowdown or withholding of services by such employees.

#### **ARTICLE 1.1 – NONDISCRIMINATION**

The City and the Association agree that they will not discriminate against any employee with respect to promotion, assignment or any other matter on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex (including pregnancy, sexual orientation or gender identity), national origin, marital status, disability, age, genetic information, military status and any other characteristic protected by law. The provisions of this agreement shall apply equally to all employees.

All references to employees in this Agreement include both sexes and whenever the male gender is referenced, such reference shall equally be construed as applying to all employees.

#### **ARTICLE 2 - ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES**

**Section 1**. Three members of the Association negotiating committee shall be granted reasonable leave from duty with no loss of pay or benefits for all reasonably necessary meetings between the City and the Association for the purpose of negotiating the terms of the Contract. Such on-duty employees will be properly uniformed and equipped and shall monitor a portable radio and be prepared to respond to calls for service which cannot be handled promptly or adequately by other on-duty personnel.

**Section 2.** All employees in the bargaining unit shall have the right to join the Association and to engage in Association activity. There shall be no intimidation, coercion or discrimination of any kind against any employee in the bargaining unit because of membership in or activity on behalf of the Association. The City shall provide space for a four foot by eight foot bulletin board for the posting of notices concerning Association business and activities, (and one legal size file in the police station to be used by the Association). The Association shall have the use of the guard room in said station at reasonable times upon request therefor to the Chief by at least three (3) days' advance written notice for meetings of said Association. In the event that the Chief allows one or more on-duty officers to attend such meeting, they must do so in uniform (if so assigned)

and be properly equipped and prepared to respond to any calls for service.

#### ARTICLE 3 – DIRECT DEPOSIT

Employees shall have their weekly wages deposited into a bank account of their choice. Direct deposit shall begin as soon as possible after the employee has completed proper paperwork. Each weekly payroll check will be accompanied by an itemized voucher showing deductions made from wages.

#### **ARTICLE 4 - VACATIONS**

Vacation time shall be granted and computed as set forth in General Laws, Chapter 41, Sections 111A and 111D, it being understood that the work "week" as used therein means five (5) working days, i.e., an officer entitled to three (3) weeks' vacation is entitled to fifteen (15) working days off.

- a. After completion of six (6) months of service within the calendar year of hire, one (1) week of vacation, as currently provided;
- b. After completion of one (1) year of service, two (2) weeks of vacation;
- c. After completion of five (5) years of service, three (3) weeks of vacation;
- d. After completion of ten (10) years of service, four (4) weeks of vacation;
- e. After completion of fifteen (15) years of service, five (5) weeks of vacation.
- f. Vacation leave credits shall vest on January 1 of each year, and during each calendar year on an employee's anniversary date when he/she reaches any of the eligibility milestones (i.e., 1 year, 5 years, 10 years and 15 years of service).
- g. Vacations shall be chosen in rank by seniority. The Chief or his designee shall publish the vacation period roster on or about October 15th of each year.
- h. Swapping or exchanging of vacations or any part thereof with other officers in the same division will be allowed, after an officer has first drawn from the group to which said employee is assigned.
- i. If officers want to split their vacation with another officer in the same-shift, they may.
- i. An officer may request from the Chief a variation of said employee's vacation.
- k. Officers may take up to one week of vacation time in single day increments. Any such request for single vacation days must be provided to the Chief three days in advance of the day, and such requests for single days of vacation will not be unreasonably denied by the Chief.

The police special units such as traffic department, inspectors or officers of Juvenile Division and police mechanic, will not be considered as part of the department for the selection of vacation time. They will have a separate drawing of vacations.

#### **ARTICLE 5 - COURT TIME**

Any police officer in the bargaining unit who attends Court (including administrative agencies) in connection with the performance of said officer's duties: (a) as a witness for the Commonwealth

in a criminal action, or (b) as a witness in a civil action (including administrative proceedings), at a time when said officer is not scheduled to work shall be paid at time and one-half said officer's regular hourly wage during such attendance at Court, but, in no event, shall less than four (4) hours compensation be paid (at time and one-half).

An employee performing court-time duty until 11 A.M. or thereafter, after completing a "last-half" tour of duty (commencing at 11:45 P.M.) and scheduled to report for a "first-half" tour of duty (commencing at 3:45 P.M.) on the same day, may, at the employee's option, report for work at 6:45 P.M. and work until the end of said employee's scheduled tour of duty, without-loss of pay or benefits, provided said employee has notified the Department to such effect prior to 2:00 P.M. on such day.

#### ARTICLE 6 – FUNERAL LEAVE

Each employee in the bargaining unit shall, in the event of death in the employee's immediate family, be granted leave without loss of pay for four consecutive days and the timing of such leave shall be coordinated with and approved by the Chief. The employee shall not be required to return to work until the day after the funeral. For the purposes of this Article, the "immediate family" shall mean and include the following: mother, father, grandparents, grandchildren, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister, brother, spouse, child, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, or relative residing within the employee's household.

A bargaining unit member shall be granted leave with pay on the day of the funeral to attend the funeral of the following relatives: niece, nephew, aunt or uncle.

#### **ARTICLE 7 - SPECIAL LEAVE**

Each employee in the bargaining unit shall be granted permission to swap a shift upon reasonable written notice to the Chief provided the Chief does not determine there are overriding public safety reasons not to approve such requested swap. Further provided that:

- a. Such substitution does not impose any additional cost on the City;
- b. Such substitution is within rank only;
- c. The officer in charge of the division in which the substitution takes place shall be notified in writing on an appropriate form not less than one day prior to its becoming effective, except in the case of emergency, in which case notification may be made by telephone;
- d. Neither the department nor the City shall be responsible for enforcing any agreements made between employees in the bargaining unit.
- e. An officer, upon request, may substitute an out of turn tour of duty for said employee's regularly scheduled tour of duty, provided such substitution is approved by the Chief. Such substitution shall not be considered overtime.

#### ARTICLE 7.5 – LIGHT DUTY AND INJURED LEAVE

**Section 1. Incapacitation.** An employee incapacitated for duty because of sickness, injury or disability sustained in the performance of his duty without fault on his part, or an employee assigned to special duty, whether or not he is paid for such special duty by the city, is so incapacitated because of sickness, injury or disability so sustained, shall be granted injured leave without loss of pay or other compensation for the period of such incapacity, and this pursuant to G.L. ch. 41, Section 111F, as modified hereunder and subject to the provisions of this Article.

The term "duty" shall include limited duty tasks described and defined in this Article. It is understood that the words "sickness, injury or disability" shall be interpreted in the same manner as the words "incapacitated for duty because of injury sustained in the performance of his duty" in G.L. ch. 41, §111F.

#### **Section 1.1 Determination of Incapacity.**

An employee injured in the performance of their duty shall submit a written report to the Chief or his designee within 24 hours of the event causing the injury, or as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, which contains comprehensive information about the event causing the injury, its nature, the names and addresses of all medical providers, the medical record/report establishing the injury, and signed authorizations for the Chief to obtain the pertinent medical records relating to the injury.

If the Chief denies the claim, he shall provide written notice of the denial to the employee within thirty (30) days of the event, provided he has received timely notice.

Pending the Chief's determination, the Employee will be placed on sick leave. If it is later determined, however, that the employee is entitled to leave under G.L. ch. 41, §111F, such leave shall relate back to the first day of absence and all sick time, and other compensable leave time, used shall be restored and credited to the employee.

The employee shall provide any updates, as soon as they become available, to the Chief or designee of their medical condition and treatment while the employee remains on leave.

**Section 2. Examination Treatment.** An employee so absent from duty shall be entitled to examination and treatment by a physician of his own choice, and may be examined from time to time by a City physician, at City expense, upon direction of the Chief.

The employee's physician shall be afforded full opportunity to consult with the City's physician as to the employee's fitness to resume police duty. If the employee's physician and the City physician disagree as to such "fitness", they shall thereupon jointly designate a physician agreeable to both who, at the City's expense, shall examine the employee and render a written medical opinion as to the employee's fitness, copies of which shall be transmitted by him to both

the City physician and his own physician.

Pending receipt of such opinion, the City shall not require the employee to return to duty and shall continue to fully compensate him/her on paid injured leave for lost time due to any such absence.

If the third physician determines that the employee is not fit to return to duty, the employee shall be continued on paid injured leave.

If the third physician determines that the employee is fit to return to full duty or fit to return to limited duty, the employee shall no longer be continued on paid injured leave.

The opinion of the third physician shall be final and binding on the parties. His/her determination shall not be subject to the grievance/arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

No injured leave benefits shall be granted for any period after an employee has retired or been pensioned in accordance with law or for any period after a physician, jointly designated as above set forth, determines that his/her incapacity (as set forth in Section 1) no longer exists for full duty.

**Section 3. Limited Duty.** An employee shall be fit to return to duty if capable of performing limited police duties on either a full time or less than full time basis. Limited duty tasks are solely the following:

- a. General clerical work;
- b. Schooling (non-physical);
- c. Such other tasks as may be agreed on by the Chief of Police and the Association.

The foregoing limited police duties shall be station in-house duties unless otherwise agreed by the Chief of Police and the Association. The Chief of Police will make every reasonable effort where possible to make assignments of limited duty to the same shift as the employee was then assigned. Assignments to limited duty tasks may be changed or terminated at the discretion of the Chief, subject only to the provisions contained in this Article. Limited duty assignments shall not involve prisoner processing. No disciplinary action will be taken against an employee assigned to perform limited duty tasks who fails to respond to incidents which could result in re-injury or exacerbation of injury.

It is understood that assignment to limited duty tasks pursuant to the provisions of this Section are temporary in nature and shall not extend beyond the period of incapacity for full duty. Limited duty assignments will not be made to avoid seniority choices of employees in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

**Section 4. Indemnification.** An employee assigned to limited duty under the provisions of this Article shall be entitled to indemnification as set forth in M.G.L. ch.41, Sec. 100. The provisions

of this Article shall not constitute a waiver of said rights.

**Section 5. Re-Examination.** In the event an employee is unable to perform limited duty tasks and his/her physician so states, the third physician process above provided, shall be resorted to in the event that the City physician disagrees, provided, however, resort to the third physician process in such event shall not occur sooner than sixty (60) work days after limited duty tasks first commence; provided, further, pending the conclusion of such process, the employee may be returned to paid injured leave status under Section 1. However, pending the conclusion of such process, the Chief may assign the employee to another one of the task(s) set forth in Section 3 above, or may return the employee to injured leave status.

**Section 6. Voluntary Duty.** Nothing in this Article shall preclude an officer returning to limited duty on the advice of his own doctor, subject, however, to the opinion of the City physician if so requested by the City in such case.

**Section 7. Uniform.** An officer returning to limited duty shall wear his uniform or plainclothes as determined by the Chief of Police, provided, however, a determination by the Chief that an officer shall wear his uniform shall take into account the safety of the officer and the possibility of reinjury or exacerbation of injury. No officer, however, shall be required to wear his uniform to and from work.

**Section 8. Full Duty Employees.** Limited duty assignments shall not be made or used to replace any full duty employee regularly assigned to the Station/Communications without the consent of the Association.

**Section 9. Expedite Medical Information.** In order to expedite receipt of pertinent medical information (and therefore payment of medical expenses, etc.), employees who are treated at a hospital, or by a physician of their choice, shall sign a form releasing to the Police Department any and all medical and hospital records and documents pertaining solely to the nature, extent and cause of the particular sickness, injury or disability incurred in the performance of duty, or reoccurrence thereof, involved.

**Section 10. Paid Details**. No officer on limited duty or light duty will be allowed to work any police details, and will not be allowed to work any overtime.

**Section 11. Sick or Injured Off Duty – Limited/Light Duty.** Any officer who is out sick for a long period of time and is using his own sick leave will also have the option of returning to work under light or limited duty as is specified to in the above-mentioned policies and procedures.

# **ARTICLE 8 - MASSACHUSETTS POLICE ASSOCIATION ACTIVITIES**

No more than two (2) employees in the bargaining unit may be excused from duty and from

attendance at the police station or other place for not more than two (2) days in any year without loss of pay while in attendance as official delegates at the annual convention of the Massachusetts Police Association held within the Commonwealth.

#### ARTICLE 9 - UNIFORM AND CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

Each employee in the bargaining unit may be allowed One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$1250.00) per year, as a clothing and uniform allowance which shall be under the control and supervision of the Chief. Members will receive Uniform and Clothing Allowance in equal semi-annual payments on or before July 15 and December 15 of each year. The aforementioned uniform and clothing allowance shall be in the form of a cash payment to each of the regular police officers. Anything contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Chief may, at any time, terminate the aforementioned cash payment form of uniform and clothing allowance, for any or all employees, and return for the succeeding fiscal years, to a voucher system previously in effect or such uniform purchase system as the Chief determines in the best interest of the Department. The Chief, prior to any such termination, shall so advise the Association. The termination of the cash form of uniform and clothing allowances as to any or all employees, as aforementioned, shall not be subject to challenge

#### **ARTICLE 10 - LEASH LAW CONTROL**

No dead animals shall be handled by employees in the bargaining unit. The City shall furnish employees in the bargaining unit adequate dog restraining equipment for the capturing, holding and delivering thereof or otherwise performing the duty of a dog officer.

#### ARTICLE 11 - POLICE PERSONNEL AND AUXILIARY POLICE

The City or the Chief under no circumstances shall hire or engage any person or persons whether paid or not for police duty other than an employee in the bargaining unit, or in the bargaining unit described in Case No. MCR-1383, unless no such police officer is available. The foregoing is not to affect hiring of traffic supervisors for school crossings, special police at polling places and auxiliary police at Sunday church attendance. The Association will provide the Chief with a list of officers who are available for work. The Civil Defense Act and its operation by the City shall in no manner be affected by this Article. In the absence of a declared emergency by proper authority or unusual assemblage of people, no auxiliary police shall be hired or otherwise engaged when a police officer in the bargaining unit is available for special detail.

#### **ARTICLE 12 - EXTRA PAID DETAILS**

The following provisions shall govern the assignment of extra paid details to police officers in the bargaining unit and in the bargaining unit described in Case No. MCR-1383 where the detail is to be paid for by another city department, by a government body or by an outside individual, group, corporation or organization:

a. Such assignments shall be made by the Chief or the Chief's designated representative who shall be of the rank of sergeant or above and shall be distributed among the employees in

the bargaining unit and in the bargaining unit described in Case No. MCR-1383, as equitably as is possible. Acceptance of such assignments shall be on a voluntary basis. The assigning officer may not delegate this responsibility to a third party. The department shall maintain a record of all such assignments which may be examined at any reasonable time by a representative of the Association.

- b. No such assignment shall be made until the person or organization requesting service has agreed to pay the rates established and agreed upon by the Chief and the Association.
- c. No such assignment shall be made to regular reserve police officers unless all employees are unavailable or decline the assignment. No such assignment shall be made to provisional reserve police officers, auxiliary police, special police or other persons unless all employees in the bargaining unit and the bargaining unit described in Case No. MCR-1383 are unavailable or decline the assignment.
- d. The City agrees to prohibit the use of civilian flagmen for any paid detail work assignment within the limits of the City of Melrose.

#### **ARTICLE 13 - OVERTIME**

Any employee in the bargaining unit who is ordered by the Chief (or, in the Chief's absence, the officer in charge of the Police Department) to report for duty and does so during the period of time that the employee normally would be off duty shall be paid at an overtime rate of time and one-half of the regular hourly wage computed on the basis of a thirty-seven and one-half (371/2) hour workweek. Any employee in the bargaining unit who is so detailed shall be paid a minimum of four (4) hours pay at the rate set forth herein.

Subject to the needs of the Department, reasonable notice will be given of scheduled overtime. The overtime list shall consist of each member of the Department, and shall be maintained by the Department's record management system. The record shall show the date of the call and the response from each person called as to whether it was refused or if no answer. If an employee refuses, said employee will be automatically passed by until a complete cycle of the list has been made. This list shall allow for a uniform method of rotation on a voluntary basis of off-duty officers. There shall be no discrimination against any employee who declines to work overtime. The Chief may order overtime duty in rotation if all available employees in the department have refused to work.

#### ARTICLE 14 - POSTING OF OVERTIME AND EXTRA DUTY DETAILS

The Chief or his designee shall maintain a complete record of all overtime and extra duty details in the department's records management system. Members may view their accumulated overtime through the records management system.

#### **ARTICLE 15 – HOLIDAYS**

The following days shall be considered holidays with pay during the term of this Contract:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday
President's Day
March 17
Patriot's Day
Memorial Day
Juneteenth (effective June 27, 2022)

Independence Day
Labor Day
Columbus Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving
Christmas Day

When a holiday falls on a Sunday, it shall be observed on the following Monday. Any employee in the bargaining unit who is scheduled to work on any holiday shall be given an additional day off, or if such additional day off cannot be given because of personnel shortage or other cause, the employee shall be entitled to an additional day of holiday calculated on the basis of 1/4 of a week's pay. Such additional day's pay shall be based and computed on a thirty-seven and one-half (37-1/2) hour workweek. Any employee in the bargaining unit whose regular schedule is a five and two (5 & 2) shall be given an additional day off or an additional day of holiday calculated on the basis of 1/4 of a week's pay in lieu thereof, at the discretion of the Chief. Such additional day's pay shall be based and computed on a thirty-seven and one-half (37-1/2) hour workweek.

#### **ARTICLE 16 - UNUSED TIME OFF (Compensatory Time)**

Employees in the bargaining unit shall be compensated in their paycheck no later than December 1st of each year for all unused time off accrued during the preceding eleven (11) months on account of holidays, court time or for any other reason which has not been previously paid within said eleven (11) month period. Employees in the bargaining unit shall be compensated in their paycheck no later than December 31 for all unused time off accrued during the month of December.

Employees in the bargaining unit shall be compensated for any accumulated (unpaid) overtimeand any other time off due when they are permanently separated from employment as a result of voluntary resignation, discharge, retirement, death, or any other reason. In the event of death, payment is to be made to the estate of the employee or the employee's designated beneficiary. The amount of payment of all unpaid overtime is to be calculated as provided in this contract at the employee's overtime rate in effect at the time such overtime was performed.

Whenever the use of compensatory time would result in the need to backfill, on an overtime basis, a member's assignment/shift, such compensatory time shall only be taken in minimum increments of 4 hours.

#### **ARTICLE 17 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION**

No employee in the bargaining unit shall be discharged, suspended or disciplined except for just cause.

#### ARTICLE 18 - EMPLOYEE GROUP HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE

The provision of health insurance benefits to members of the bargaining unit shall be in accordance with any agreement reached with the Public Employee Committee as required by G.L. c.32, §19. Basic Life insurance premiums will be paid 75% by the City and 25% by the employee. Any future additional premium cost during the term of this agreement for life insurance coverage shall be shared on the same basis as noted.

# ARTICLE 19 - HOURS OF DUTY AND REGULAR WORKWEEK Section 1. Work Week - Work day.

The regular work week of employees shall consist of not more than forty (40) hours, and the regular work day shall consist of not more than eight (8) hours. Employees shall be scheduled to work on regular work shifts or tours of duty and each work shift or tour of duty shall have the following regular starting time and quitting time.

The current regular tours of duty/work shift and hours of work of the day, the two alternating night shifts and the permanent first half shift and last half shift are as follows:

- a. Shift 1 is the day shift; its hours are from 7:45 A.M. to 3:45 P.M.
- b. Shift 2 is a night shift; its hours are from 3:45 P.M. to 11:45 P.M.
- c. Shift 3 is a night shift; its hours are from 11:45 P.M. to 7:45 A.M.
- d. Shift 4 is a night shift; its hours are from 11:45 P.M. to 7:45 A.M. (split shift)
- e. Shift 5 is a night shift; its hours are from 3:45 P.M. to 11: 45 P.M. (split shift)
- f. Shift 6 is both a day and night shift; its hours are from 3:45 p.m. to 11:45 p.m. (2 shifts) and from 7:45 a.m. to 3:45 p.m. (2 shifts)
- g. Shifts 2 and 3 shall alternate between first and last half tours of duty on their second and third tours of duty, in accordance with present practice.

#### Section 2. Work Schedules, Day-off or Squad Schedules.

All employees shall receive not less than one hundred twenty-one and one-third (121 1/3) regular days off annually, and not less than two (2) consecutive regular days off weekly, in accordance with and characteristic of the four-and-two schedule so-called, or the modified four-and-two work schedule set forth in subparagraph (b) of this Section.

All employees, under such four-and-two work week so-called shall receive fourteen (14) regular days off in each six week period; within each six week period, the work cycle for the four and two work week shall be completed. An employee's days off, except as hereinafter provided in subparagraph (b) of this Section, shall drop back one (1) day every week. Employees working days or permanent last half shift (Shift 4) or the permanent first half shift (Shift 5), shall work four (4) consecutive days and then receive two (2) consecutive regular days off. Employees working the two alternating night shifts shall commence work on a last half tour of duty; then work a last half tour of duty the following day, then work a first half tour of duty the same day; and then work a first half tour of duty the following day, then go on their two (2) consecutive days off and then

return to work the same cycle.

Excepted from the regular four-and-two work schedule so-called, set forth in sub-paragraph (a) above, shall be the following positions/employees, which shall be filled and assigned by the Chief:

- Lieutenant Patrol Commander
- Detective Supervisor
- Operations Training
- Traffic/Firearms LTC
- Professional Standards

Under the five (5) day work week above-mentioned, each of such employees so assigned shall be entitled to and shall receive, six (6) days or forty eight (48) hours off annually, so that each such employee so assigned shall receive the same number of days off annually as will employees working the regular four-and-two work schedule described in subparagraph (a) of this Section.

#### ARTICLE 20 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

Leave of absence without pay for limited periods not to exceed three (3) months may be granted for any reasonable purpose and such leave may be extended or renewed for any reasonable period consistent with Civil Service laws and regulations.

Reasonable purpose in each case shall be agreed upon by the Association, the Chief, and the Mayor.

#### **ARTICLE 21 - HEALTH AND SAFETY**

A Safety Committee of two (2) members of the Association may meet with the Chief to discuss and make recommendations for improvements of general health, safety and morale of the employees in the bargaining unit.

#### **ARTICLE 22 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

Step 1

Any grievance which may arise between the parties hereto shall be presented in the following manner and order and within the time limits set forth herein. A grievance is defined as a claim concerning the interpretation or application of any of the provisions of this Contract (except the Preamble), or any provision of the City ordinances concerning wages, hours and other conditions of employment which concern the employees.

representative to the superior officer involved within thirty-five (35) days of the date of the grievance or of the date the employee first acquired knowledge of its occurrence and an earnest effort shall be made to adjust the grievance in an

informal manner. The aggrieved employee may communicate with the Association representative over the department communication system, telephone or other available means to advise the Association representative of the grievance. The

Grievances may be first presented by the aggrieved employee and/or Association

officer in charge may, on request permit the employee and/or Association representative to be excused for a reasonable period (as determined by the officer in charge) from the officer's regular duty without loss of pay for the purpose of a meeting to discuss the grievance.

- Step 2: If the grievance is not resolved in Step 1 within five (5) days after its presentation to the superior officer involved, the grievance shall then be reduced to writing by the Association and presented to the Chief within seven (7) days after the expiration of the aforementioned five (5) day period. The Chief shall meet with the Association Grievance Committee within seven (7) days from the time the grievance is presented to the Chief and the Chief shall answer the grievance in writing within seven (7) days after the meeting. If the Chief is away, the time limits will start to run on the Chief's return to duty.
- Step 3: If the grievance has not been settled in Step 2, it shall be submitted in writing to the Mayor, or the Mayor's designated representative within seven (7) days after the Chief's response is due or received. The Mayor shall meet with the Association within seven (7) days from the time the grievance is presented to the Mayor and the Mayor, or the Mayor's designated representative, shall answer the grievance in writing within ten (10) days after the meeting. If the Mayor is away the time limits will start to run on the Mayor's return to duty.
- **Step 4:** If the grievance has not been settled in Step 3, the Union may, within thirty (30) days after the reply of the Mayor, or his designated representative is due or received, by written notice to the City, submit the grievance to arbitration.

If the parties do not agree on an arbitrator, the Association may submit the grievance to the Massachusetts Board of Conciliation and Arbitration or the American Arbitration Association for proceedings in accordance with its rules. The arbitrator's authority shall be limited to matters involving the interpretation and application of the specific provisions of this Agreement or the City ordinances referred to above. The arbitrator may not modify, amend, delete or add to the terms of this Contract. Within the limits of the Arbitrator's authority, the decision of the arbitrator to the extent permitted by law, shall be final and binding. The expenses of such arbitration shall be shared equally, by the City and the Association.

If a grievance involving disciplinary action is arbitrated and the arbitrator finds that the imposition of the discipline was not for just cause, the arbitrator shall have the power to order reinstatement and back pay, appropriate fringe benefits and other privileges which would have inured to the employee had the employee not been so disciplined for such period as the arbitrator may deem equitable from the time of the award back to the time of the disciplinary action. Any award which

provides for reinstatement with back pay shall provide that to be deducted therefrom shall be all earnings of the employee from gainful employment and all payments of unemployment compensation during the period of the disciplinary action. Earnings from a job in existence and worked regularly by the employee prior to the imposition of discipline shall not be deducted.

Failure of the Association to present a grievance within and to advance it in accordance with any of the time limits set forth in the grievance procedure shall constitute a resolution of the grievance against the party failing to so present and advance the grievance. The failure to give a timely answer shall be the equivalent of a denial and the grievance may then be appealed to the next step, provided such appeal is timely filed. The time limits set forth herein may be enlarged by the consent of the parties hereto.

No employee shall have the right to require arbitration, that right being reserved to the Association.

A grievance of an individual which is of a general or policy nature may, at the option of the Association, be filed in Step 2.

In the event a grievance involving suspension, dismissal, removal or termination is brought to arbitration as hereinbefore provided, it shall be the exclusive procedure for resolving such grievance, notwithstanding any contrary provision of M.G.L. Chapter 31, Sections 43 and 46G.

#### **ARTICLE 23 - COMPENSATION**

#### **Section 1. Salary**

Effective June 28, 2021, the base wage shall increase 2%; effective June 27, 2022, the base wage shall increase 2%; and effective July 3, 2023 the base wage shall increase 2.25%.

The City agrees to provide a one percent (1%) Market Adjustment to be added to the base in year 3 of the contract (effective July 3, 2023).

#### Section 2. Stipends

- **a. Hazardous Duty Stipend:** Effective June 27, 2022, stipends for the Defibrillators, Hazardous Duty and Narcan Distribution & Training will be combined into a new general Hazardous Duty Stipend totaling \$1750, which will eliminate the existing Defibrillator and Narcan Distribution and Training stipends. This Hazardous duty stipend shall be added to base pay for purposes of calculating hourly/OT rate.
  - O Defibrillators: Effective July 2, 2012 each employee in the bargaining unit shall receive a \$500 annual stipend for defibrillator and training which shall be paid on or about September 15th. Currently certification is conducted while attending annual in service training. If changes are implemented to this training, annual defibrillator training will be completed through certified instructors. The stipend

- shall be contingent upon successfully completing the training and any associated proficiency testing.
- o **Hazardous Duty:** Effective January 1, 2017 each employee in the bargaining unit shall receive a \$500 annual stipend for Hazardous Duty which shall be paid on or about September 15th.
- Narcan Distribution and Training: Effective June 30, 2014 each employee in the bargaining unit shall receive a \$250 annual stipend for Narcan Distribution and Training which shall be paid on or about September 15th. Training and implementation will be coordinated through the Police Department Training Supervisor and Melrose Public Health Substance Abuse Coalition Coordinator. Training may be conducted off or on site and if necessary members may be compensated with overtime. Currently, certification is a one-time Training. If annual certification is required in the future, the stipend shall be contingent upon successfully completing the training and any associated proficiency testing. The administering of Narcan will be implemented when there is an agreed upon Melrose Police General Order detailing the relevant guidelines and liability issues and protections of the employees.
- b. **On-Call Detective Supervisor:** Effective June 30, 2014, the Detective Supervisor shall receive a stipend in the amount of \$100 for every week that he or she is required to be oncall and responding to duty. It is the Detective Supervisor's responsibility to notify the Police Payroll Office of their on-call status to ensure timely payment of this stipend.
- c. Effective July 2, 2019, each employee in the bargaining unit shall receive an annual stipend for administration of the Department's breathalyzer in the amount of 2% of annual base pay which shall be paid in weekly installments. In order to remain eligible for this stipend, employees must remain certified as required by law.
- d. **State Accreditation/Certification Stipend**: Effective upon ratification and funding of this agreement, each officer will receive a stipend of \$750 in recognition of the Department's efforts to achieve certification from the Massachusetts Police Accreditation Commission. Once certification is achieved, the parties agree that it is their intent to seek accreditation. Upon receiving accreditation, the City will provide officers with an additional accreditation stipend of \$1,000 effective on the July 1 following accreditation. Accreditation and certification must be maintained in order to continue receiving this stipend. Eligibility for this pay will cease immediately in the event of the loss or failure to renew certification or accreditation.

The Sergeants and Lieutenants rates of pay predicated as they are upon a differential factor shall

not increase in any subsequent contract year as a result of an increase in the patrol officer's rates for that year, unless and until:

The City and the Association reach a full and final settlement in their collective bargaining negotiations for that year; or

The Association is willing to accept as a full and final settlement the reached with the patrol officers and so notifies the City in writing. In such case, the percentage differential then in effect, as applied to the new patrol officer's rates, will be implemented when the patrol officers new rates are implemented, not with-standing that the final agreement has not in fact been reached by the City and the Association.

#### **Section 3. Longevity**

Additional compensation for continuous service shall be paid to employees in accordance with the following schedule:

	Payable in two equal
	<b>Installments in</b>
Years of continuous service	December & June
Ten (10) years, but less than fifteen (15) years	\$ 550.00
Fifteen (15) years, but less than twenty (20) years	\$ 750.00
Twenty (20) years, but less than twenty-five (25) years	\$1,330.00
Twenty-five (25) years but less than twenty nine (29) years	\$1,750.00
Twenty nine years or more	\$2,500.00

- a. An employee with a break in service who returns to employment with the City of Melrose, and is re-employed for at least two years, shall receive the Longevity Benefit based on their Civil Service Date of Appointment. An employee who transfers from another Civil Service department to the City of Melrose and is employed for at least two years shall receive the Longevity Benefit based on their Civil Service date of appointment.
- b. Employees hired prior to July 1, 1983, shall be credited with prior continuous service in other City departments if there was no gap between such service and service in the Police Department. Longevity compensation shall be considered regular compensation for pension/retirement purposes.
- c. Any longevity payments made under Article 23(4) shall be rolled into the base wage for members of the bargaining unit.

#### **Section 4. Shift Differential**

Effective June 27, 2022, the parties' CBA shall be amended to include a new shift differential for the last half shift, and new rates for shift differentials shall be as follows:

First Half / "C" Shift: \$4950 Last Half / "A" Shift: \$7140 Weekend Shift: \$2000

- a. **Night Shift**: Employees who regularly work the first half or last half shift shall be paid weekly for such shift work at Night Shift Differential at a weekly rate of \$95 on July 1, 2019. Night Shift Differential shall not be included in base pay for the purpose of the computation of overtime and court time or any other benefit provided in this agreement. Such Premium shall be included, however, in any sick leave or injured leave pay to which the employee is entitled under Chapter 41, Section 111F (not to exceed six months) or vacation pay and shall be considered as regular compensation for pension/retirement purposes.
- b. Weekend Shift: All members of the bargaining unit assigned to the day shift/tour of duty shall receive a Weekend Differential at a weekly rate of \$30.00 effective January 1, 2017. Weekend Differential shall not be included in base pay for the purpose of computation of overtime and court time or any other benefit provided in this agreement. It shall, however, be included in base pay for the purpose of computing vacation pay, sick pay and injured leave pay for service-connected injury, and shall be considered regular compensation for pension/retirement purposes.

# **Section 5. Mid-Career Step Increases**

Effective June 27, 2022, bargaining unit employees shall be entitled to a new mid-career step increase at 25 years. The new step increase shall be 2% consistent with the existing mid-career increases. As part of this proposal the City agrees with the Union that steps 6-8 should be removed from the salary tables. The Parties have confirmed that these should be applied as step increases rather than separate steps. The City will correct the application going forward and no change will be made to the affected employee's current salaries.

Bargaining unit employees shall be entitled to mid-career step increases as follows:

```
10 years – 2%
15 years – 2%
20 years – 2%
25 years – 2% (effective June 27, 2022)
```

Such mid-career step increases shall be calculated based on an employee's years of service in the Department.

#### **Section 6. Retirement Notice**

Employees covered by the Agreement shall receive a bonus of fifteen percent (15%) of

their base pay in their last year of service provided that they retire prior to their sixtieth birthday, a bonus of ten percent (10%) of their base pay if retiring prior to their sixty-second birthday, and a bonus of five percent (5%) if retiring prior to their sixty-fourth birthday. To be eligible for this bonus, the employee must provide written notice of their intent to retire fifteen (15) months before retiring and retire at the end of the 15 months. Once submitted the intent to retire is irrevocable except for extreme hardship. An employee seeking to revoke based on extreme hardship must petition the Director of Human Resources Department or their designee. The decision whether to allow an employee to revoke their notice is solely within the Director or their designee's discretion and is not subject to the grievance and arbitration process. An employee allowed to revoke or change their retirement date is responsible for repaying any bonus money paid out under this section based on the original notice.

#### **ARTICLE 24 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

**Section 1.** This Agreement is not intended to violate any federal, state, county or municipal laws, nor shall any provision in this Agreement be interpreted as diminishing the rights of the City to determine and prescribe the methods and means by which the operation of the Police Department shall be conducted, except as may otherwise be specifically provided in this Agreement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, it is recognized that the operation of routes and beats, that is, whether or not they are to be filled, is a management function to be determined by the Chief.

**Section 2.** Except as otherwise herein provided, all job benefits heretofore enjoyed by the employees in the bargaining unit will continue under the conditions upon which they have previously been granted. This Agreement shall not be construed to deprive employees of any benefits or protection granted by the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

#### ARTICLE 25 – SENIORITY / EXCEPTIONS

All employees in the bargaining unit shall be placed on a shift assignment in accordance with seniority within the employee's rank. Excepted from this seniority in shift assignment shall be the positions of Lt. Patrol Commander, Detective Supervisor, MIS/Operations Officer, Traffic Officer and Training Officer, which may be filled and assigned by the Chief. Effective July 1, 2019, the stipends for these positions shall be as follows:

Lieutenant Patrol Commander: 5% of annual base pay
 Detective Supervisor: 5.33% of annual base pay
 (Detective Supervisor Stipend shall revert to 5% when incumbent is no longer in position)

Traffic Officer: 5% of annual base pay
 Operations/Training Officer: 5% of annual base pay
 Professional Standards 5% of annual base pay

A list of the aforementioned shifts for each rank shall be posted electronically via email to all members. Employees absent from work shall be notified of the posting by the Chief or his

designee. Employees in each rank shall then pick their shift assignments in order of seniority. Whenever a shift opening becomes available, it shall be posted for five (5) days. Employees who are absent shall be notified of the vacancy. The senior employees within the rank who requests the vacancy in writing shall be given the shift assignment. Said shift assignment shall thereafter be subject to the two year pick as hereinabove provided. Seniority is defined as the length of service within the rank as determined by the date of appointment to such rank. In case of equal seniority the date of appointment to the next lower rank shall prevail, and in the case of equality between patrol officers, the position on the Civil Service list shall prevail.

It is further agreed that the City shall conduct a regular in-service educational program for all employees which shall include training to qualify for the positions of safety officers, police photographer, youth officer and special investigator.

#### ARTICLE 26 - POLICE CAREER INCENTIVE PROGRAM

A Police Career Incentive Program has been established pursuant to the provisions of the General Laws of Massachusetts Chapter 41, Section 108L, which Chapter was adopted by the city. Effective July 1, 2010 in the event the Commonwealth's share of funding for the Quinn Bill program is reduced or eliminated, the City will be responsible for funding any shortfall for the Commonwealth's share of the program. Quinn Bill/Police Career Incentive payments will be paid out on a weekly basis as part of regular compensation. This section shall apply to all existing bargaining unit members, hired prior to July 1, 2010 and shall not apply to future bargaining unit members who are not otherwise entitled to the benefits set forth in Article 26. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any officer who laterally transfers to the Melrose Police Department – and was receiving Quinn Bill/Police Career Incentive payments from their former community – shall be entitled to those benefits as set forth in this provision.

# **ARTICLE 27 - ACCUMULATED SICK LEAVE Section 1:**

a. Each employee shall be entitled to fifteen (15) days of sick leave per year with pay. Each employee who qualifies for the Sick Bank established under Section 2 shall give one (1) sick leave day to the Sick Bank (leaving him/her with fourteen (14) days sick leave days to use in calendar year 1996 or accumulate for use in any subsequent year). Effective January 1, 1997 and on January 1st of each calendar year thereafter, each employee who has qualified or qualifies for the Sick Bank established under Section 2 shall give two (2) sick leave days to the Sick Leave Bank (leaving him/her with thirteen (13) sick leave days to use in calendar year 1997 or in any calendar year thereafter, or accumulate for use in any subsequent year). Days of sick leave which are unused in any particular year may be accumulated for use in any subsequent year up to a maximum accumulation of two hundred and fifteen (215) days.

Upon reaching the applicable maximum accumulation, an employee who uses any sick

leave shall have such days of sick leave subtracted from the applicable maximum accumulation. In no event will an employee be allowed to accumulate more than the applicable maximum accumulation.

b. Whenever the employment of any employee covered by this Agreement is terminated by retirement in accordance with M.G.L. c. 32, or by death, after twenty or more years of continuous service with the Police Department, such employee shall receive 25% of said employee's unused accumulated sick leave days, up to a maximum of \$6,000.00. For purposes of this section, a "day" shall mean 1/5 of the employee's regular weekly rate of pay at the time of said retirement or death.

#### Section 2. Sick Leave Bank

a. Effective January 1, 1996, a Sick Leave Bank is hereby established for all qualified employees whose accumulated sick leave has been exhausted due to a prolonged illness or injury. Each employee who qualifies shall fund the Bank with one (1) sick leave day on 1/1/96 and two (2) sick leave days on January 1st of each calendar year thereafter. The Bank will be allowed to carry over, from year to year, unused sick days. Said days may be utilized by qualified employees.

Each new employee hired after January 1, 1996, upon their graduation from a recruit training police academy, shall give one (1) sick leave day to the Bank. Thereafter, they shall comply with the same schedule under this section.

- b. Individuals shall not qualify to contribute or be considered for the sick leave bank unless they have accumulated a minimum of twenty (20) days of sick leave, however, for just cause the Committee may waive this 20 day provision.
- c. The sick leave bank shall be administered by a sick leave committee consisting of five (5) members. Two (2) members shall be designated by the Human Resources Director and three (3) members shall be designated by the Association. The sick leave bank committee shall determine the eligibility for use of the bank and the amount of leave to be granted, if any. All decisions shall be by majority vote.
- d. The following criteria shall be used by the sick leave committee in administering the bank and in determining eligibility and amounts of leave:
  - 1. Adequate medical evidence of serious illness,
  - 2. Prior utilization of all eligible sick leave,
  - 3. Propriety in use of sick leave, (Persons who have a history of using more than half of their sick leave on average may be denied use of the bank by the Committee.)
  - 4. Length of service.

- e. The decision of the sick leave bank committee with respect to eligibility and entitlement shall be final and binding and not subject to appeal.
- f. No days may be withdrawn from the sick leave bank for use for any other illness other than a prolonged illness. Days may not be withdrawn to permit the individual to stay at home to care for other members of the family.
- g. The initial grant by the Sick Leave Bank Committee shall not exceed fifteen (15) days per employee for each request.
- h. Application for benefits shall be made in writing on the appropriate application form to the Sick Leave Bank Committee accompanied by a doctor's certificate as to the need for and anticipated extent of recovery time.
- i. Members of the Union shall be reimbursed for unused sick leave in accordance with the following schedule:
  - 1. Any employee who has not used any sick time during the months of January, February or March will receive \$300 dollars on or before April 30<sup>th</sup>.
  - 2. Any employee who has not used any sick time during the months of April, May or June will receive \$300 dollars on or before July 30th.
  - 3. Any employee who has not used any sick time during the months of July, August or September will receive \$300 dollars on or before October 31<sup>st</sup>.
  - 4. Any employee who has not used sick time during the months of October, November or December will receive \$300 dollars on or before January 30th.

#### **ARTICLE 28 - NO STRIKE**

It is understood and agreed that the services performed by the City employees included in this Agreement are essential to the public health, safety and welfare. Therefore, the Union agrees on behalf of itself and its members, that it will not authorize, instigate, aid, condone, or engage in any strike, work stoppage or other action at any time, including upon termination of this Agreement, which will interrupt or interfere with the said service performed by the City of Melrose. No employee shall cause or take part in any strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or other action which will interrupt or interfere with the operation of the City. In the event of a violation of this section, the Union agrees to take positive affirmative steps with the employees concerned, and to hold employee meetings to bring about an immediate resumption of normal work. Should there be a violation of this section, there shall be no discussion or negotiations regarding the difference or dispute during the existence of such violation or before normal work have been resumed. The City agrees that it will not lockout employees nor will it do anything to provoke interruptions of or prevent such continuity of performance by said employees, insofar as such performance is required in the normal and usual operation of City services.

#### ARTICLE 28.1 – DRUG TESTING / REHABILITATION

The City and the Association recognize that the mission of law enforcement justifies the maintenance of a drug free work environment through the use of a reasonable employee drug testing/screening program. Therefore, the City and the Association agree to implement the following drug testing program which shall provide for "reasonable suspicion" drug testing, post-incident drug testing and follow-up drug testing, and shall also provide for the rehabilitation of any such employee found to be in violation of this program. It is the general intent to create a humanitarian program where treatment and discipline are both important aspects of the program.

### A. <u>Standard for Ordering Drug Testing</u>.

#### 1. Reasonable Suspicion.

Subject to the provisions of this article, an employee shall be subject to urinalysis drug testing (which shall be drug specific) if reasonable suspicion of non-prescriptive drug use exists, as determined by the Chief of the Police Department. Determination of "reasonable suspicion" shall comport with constitutional/legal guidelines. The employee shall be advised by the Chief in writing, (and in a manner which protects the privacy of the officer), of the facts and circumstances constituting his determination of "reasonable suspicion," and such notice shall inform the employee of his rights and obligations under this Article.

If the individual or the Union challenges the reasonable suspicion upon which the Chief relies, the individual must still provide the test sample according to the procedures and safeguards set forth below, however, the physician office/laboratory obtaining said sample shall not test such sample as described herein unless and until permitted to do so pursuant to the arbitration provisions described herein.

Immediately upon the individual or the Union contesting the Chief's order for urinalysis, the City and the Union jointly agree to submit the question of whether or not the Chief had reasonable suspicion to order drug testing to a permanent arbitrator selected by the parties to decide this issue. The parties agree that absent mutual agreement to choose different arbitrators, Arbitrator James Litton shall be the primary individual who shall make such determination, and if he is unable to render a decision promptly, an alternative arbitrator, Diane Zarr Cochran, shall be the alternate. The hearing (which can be by phone conference or other expedited method chosen by the arbitrator) and the decision shall be rendered on an expedited basis within seven days, or such time as the parties agree. Such decision shall be final and binding on the parties.

It is understood and agreed by the parties that with respect to making "reasonable suspicion" determinations concerning a Patrolman, as defined in the Drug Test Provision of the agreement, the Chief will generally be the individual making the determination. When the Chief is not present, or in emergency situations, Superior Officers will be required to make these determinations.

#### 2. Critical Incidents.

Subject to the provisions of this article, an employee shall be subject to urinalysis drug testing if involved in a "critical incident" which is defined as an unplanned, unexpected and unintended event which:

- a. occurs on Department property, on Department business or during working hours; and
- b. initially appears to have been caused wholly or partially by an employee; and results in either:
  - a fatality;
  - an injury requiring medical treatment away from the scene of the event; or damage to property in excess of \$5,000.00.
  - An unplanned, unexpected and unintended discharge of a firearm is also a "critical incident".

### 3. Drug Testing Based Upon Promotion/Assignment.

An employee may be tested upon his/her assignment to one of the following positions:

- a. Detective
- b. Drug Assignment/Undercover Task Force
- c. Training Officer or MIS Officer
- d. The City will not assign an employee or employees to one of the above positions in bad faith as a pretext for testing an employee.

#### B. Procedures and Safeguards for Drug Tests.

- 1. The drug testing shall only take place at a laboratory, physician's office, or collection facility, appropriately certified to provide urinalysis collecting, and said facility shall have in place written procedures ensuring the reliability of the samples taken, the prevention of tampering with said samples, and adequate protection of privacy which shall include the individual's right to provide the sample in a private but secure environment. The drug testing screen shall be limited to those drugs made unlawful by M.G.L. ch. 94C.
- 2. In all cases of drug testing, the testing facility shall split the sample taken into two, with one such sample being properly preserved, should a question as to the reliability of said drug test occur. In the event of a positive test, as set forth herein, the individual and/or the Union may have the preserved sample tested by an independent laboratory of their choice.
- 3. All urinalysis testing shall be performed at a laboratory that has been certified by either a state or federal agency to provide such urinalysis testing. In the event the initial urinalysis test is positive, a second method of testing shall be immediately administered. This second test shall employ a methodology different from the first and the second test shall be equal to the reliability of (GC-MS) Gas Chromatography-Mass Spectrophotometry or greater.

4. In the event that both urine samples are positive, and if independent testing of the same sample, if employed by the employee or the Union, is not negative, then the employee will be (in the first instance) relieved of duty with vacation, sick pay, and/or other compensable leave, to the extent available, or on leave without pay if not, pending completion of an employer and Union approved drug rehabilitation program (which may be inpatient or outpatient, including but not limited to counseling).

#### C. Status of the Employee After Positive Drug Test.

- 1. In the event of a confirmed positive drug test as set forth above, the employee may, at the discretion of the City, be suspended for 30 days (but no greater), which suspension shall be stayed pending his successful completion of the drug rehabilitation program described above, and such suspension shall be expunged from his record and from the City/Department files upon his successful completion of said program.
- 2. After successful completion of said program, the employee shall return to duty and shall be subject to follow up random drug testing for a period of two years. If the employee is again found to have used any drugs listed in Chapter 94C (assuming no lawful prescription for same), the employee shall be subject to immediate disciplinary proceedings, up to and including discharge, and shall be availed of all his rights under Chapter 31 and the collective bargaining agreement. If the employee is found to test positive for a prescription drug for which he has a lawful prescription, said employee shall not be subject to discipline under this article.
- 3. In the event of a second or further positive test result, other than during any twenty-four month period referred to above, and each arising from fact patterns and circumstances independent of those relating to the initial positive test result, the subject employee may not be entitled to further participation in the rehabilitation program and discipline, up to and including termination, may be imposed. Factors to be considered in making this determination include but are not limited to the length of time between positive test results, the employee's record in the rehabilitation program, and the balance of the employee's record and work history.
- 4. All testing shall be at the sole expense of the City. Said reporting shall be maintained in a confidential manner and said reports shall only be provided to the Chief. In the event of a positive confirmed test result, the written test report shall be provided both to the Chief and to the employee, who may provide it to the Union at his discretion. In the absence of a confirmed positive report, all other test results shall be kept confidential by the testing laboratory and any references to the ordering of such drug testing shall be removed from all City files.

#### **ARTICLE 29 - DURATION OF CONTRACT**

This Agreement shall become effective on June 28, 2021 except as otherwise provided herein, and shall expire on June 30, 2024. The parties agree that negotiations for a new collective bargaining agreement shall commence on or after January 1, 2024.

#### **ARTICLE 30 - PRIOR AGREEMENTS**

The City and the Association hereby agree to fully incorporate any previously issued side letters, memoranda of understanding, settlement agreements, and arbitration awards into this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 31 - FUNDING**

This Agreement is subject to its funding during the fiscal year 2022. The Mayor shall submit an appropriation to fund the cost items of this Agreement within thirty (30) days of the date of execution of this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 32 - RESIDENCY**

The Parties agree to extend the residency perimeter for Civil Service employees to the greatest extent permissible under G.L. c. 31, § 58.



Signed this  $22^{4}$  day of 4u505, 2023.

City Of Melrose:

Paul Brodeur

Mayor

Hereunto Duly Authorized

**Melrose Superior Police Association** 

Jonathan Goc

Association President

Hereunto Duly Authorized

# FY 22

# **CITY OF MELROSE v2021.8 LIVE**



#### **SALARY TABLES**

GRADE/	•					HRS/	HRS/	DAYS/	HRS/	DAYS/	USE
EFF. DATE GROUP/BU RANK	DESCRIPTION	PAY BASIS	FREQUENCY	CALC	PERIODS	DAY	PERIOD	PERIOD	YEAR	YEAR	PCT
06/28/2021 MPS1 MELROSE SU L10 Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used.	MPS1 - LT	A ANNUAL	W WEEKLY	12	52.0000	7.50	37.50	7.00	1950.00	365.00	N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	41.6272	223.0022	1,561.02	81,395.82
04	0.0000	42.9981	230.3470	1,612.43	84,076.65
05	0.0000	44.3619	237.6530	1,663.57	86,743.33

06/28/2021 MPS1 MELROSE SU L15 MPS1 - LT Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used. A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	42.4597	227.4623	1,592.24	83,023.74
04	0.0000	43.8581	234.9539	1,644.68	85,758.18
05	0.0000	45.2491	242.4060	1,696.84	88,478.20

06/28/2021 MPS1 MELROSE SU L20 Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used. MPS1 - LT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	43.3088	232.0115	1,624.08	84,684.21
04	0.0000	44.7352	239.6530	1,677.57	87,473.35
05	0.0000	46.1541	247.2541	1,730.78	90,247.76

06/28/2021 MPS1 MELROSE SU LT Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used. 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N MPS1 - LT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	40.8109	218.6296	1,530.41	79,799.82
04	0.0000	42.1549	225.8304	1,580.81	82,428.09
05	0.0000	43.4920	232.9931	1,630.95	85,042.48

Report generated: 07/11/2023 11:05 platta pmgrstep



# **SALARY TABLES**

	GRADE/			HRS/ HRS/	DAYS/ HRS/	DAYS/ US	E
EFF. DATE GROUP/BU	RANK DESCRIPTION	PAY BASIS FREQU	ENCY CALC PERIO	DDS DAY PERIOD	PERIOD YEAR	YEAR PC	Т

06/28/2021 MPS1 MELROSE SU S10 Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used. MPS1 - SGT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	35.8853	192.2429	1,345.70	70,168.67
04	0.0000	37.0672	198.5748	1,390.02	72,479.79
05	0.0000	38.2432	204.8744	1,434.12	74,779.15

06/28/2021 MPS1 MELROSE SU S15 MPS1 - SGT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used.

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	36.6029	196.0878	1,372.61	71,572.04
04	0.0000	37.8085	202.5462	1,417.82	73,929.38
05	0.0000	39.0080	208.9719	1,462.80	76,274.73

06/28/2021 MPS1 MELROSE SU S20 MPS1 - SGT 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N A ANNUAL W WEEKLY

Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used.

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	37.3352	200.0095	1,400.07	73,003.48
04	0.0000	38.5648	206.5972	1,446.18	75,407.97
05	0.0000	39.7883	213.1513	1,492.06	77,800.22



# **SALARY TABLES**

GRAD	E/					HRS/	HRS/	DAYS/	HRS/	DAYS/	USE
EFF. DATE GROUP/BU RANK	DESCRIPTION	PAY BASIS	FREQUENCY	CALC	PERIODS	DAY	PERIOD	PERIOD	YEAR	YEAR	PCT
06/28/2021 MPS1 MELROSE SU SGT Change was made by 2.0000		A ANNUAL	W WEEKLY	12	52.0000	7.50	37.50	7.00	1950.00	365.00	N
No Dollar amount used.	.0										

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	35.1816	188.4735	1,319.31	68,792.81
04	0.0000	36.3405	194.6812	1,362.77	71,058.62
05	0.0000	37.4933	200.8572	1,406.00	73,312.89

<sup>\*\*</sup> END OF REPORT - Generated by Polina Latta \*\*





#### **SALARY TABLES**

GRADE/	′					HRS/	HRS/	DAYS/	HRS/	DAYS/	USE
EFF. DATE GROUP/BU RANK	DESCRIPTION	PAY BASIS	FREQUENCY	CALC	PERIODS	DAY	PERIOD	PERIOD	YEAR	YEAR	PCT
,,	MPS1 - LT	A ANNUAL	W WEEKLY	12	52.0000	7.50	37.50	7.00	1950.00	365.00	N
Change_was made by 2.0000%											
No Dollar amount used.											

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	42.4597	227.4623	1,592.24	83,023.74
04	0.0000	43.8581	234.9539	1,644.68	85,758.18
05	0.0000	45.2491	242.4060	1,696.84	88,478.20

06/27/2022 MPS1 MELROSE SU L15 MPS1 - LT Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used. A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	43.3088	232.0115	1,624.08	84,684.21
04	0.0000	44.7352	239.6530	1,677.57	87,473.34
05	0.0000	46.1541	247.2541	1,730.78	90,247.76

06/27/2022 MPS1 MELROSE SU L20 MPS1 - LT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used.

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	44.1749	236.6518	1,656.56	86,377.89
04	0.0000	45.6299	244.4461	1,711.12	89,222.82
05	0.0000	47.0771	252.1992	1,765.39	92,052.72

06/27/2022 MPS1 MELROSE SU L25 MPS1 - LT Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used. 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	45.0584	241.3848	1,689.69	88,105.46
04	0.0000	46.5424	249.3350	1,745.34	91,007.26
05	0.0000	48.0187	257.2432	1,800.70	93,893.78

Report generated: 07/11/2023 11:26



# **SALARY TABLES**

	GRADE/				HRS/	HRS/	DAYS/ HRS/	DAYS/	USE
EFF. DATE GROUP/BU	RANK DESCRIPTION	PAY BASIS	FREQUENCY	CALC PERIO	S DAY	PERIOD	PERIOD YEAR	YEAR	PCT

06/27/2022 MPS1 MELROSE SU LT MPS1 - LT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used.

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	41.6272	223.0022	1,561.02	81,395.82
04	0.0000	42.9981	230.3470	1,612.43	84,076.65
05	0.0000	44.3619	237.6530	1,663.57	86,743.33

06/27/2022 MPS1 MELROSE SU S10 MPS1 - SGT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used.

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	36.6029	196.0878	1,372.61	71,572.04
04	0.0000	37.8085	202.5463	1,417.82	73,929.39
05	0.0000	39.0080	208.9719	1,462.80	76,274.73

06/27/2022 MPS1 MELROSE SU S15 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N MPS1 - SGT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used.

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	37.3352	200.0095	1,400.07	73,003.48
04	0.0000	38.5648	206.5972	1,446.18	75,407.97
05	0.0000	39.7883	213.1513	1,492.06	77,800.22

Report generated: 07/11/2023 11:26 platta Program ID: pmgrstep



# **SALARY TABLES**

GRADE,	/					HRS/	HRS/	DAYS/	HRS/	DAYS/	USE
EFF. DATE GROUP/BU RANK	DESCRIPTION	PAY BASIS	FREQUENCY	CALC	PERIODS	DAY	PERIOD	PERIOD	YEAR	YEAR	PCT
06/27/2022 MPS1 MELROSE SU S20 Change was made by 2.0000%	MPS1 - SGT	A ANNUAL	W WEEKLY	12	52.0000	7.50	37.50	7.00	1950.00	365.00	N
No Dollar amount used.											

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	38.0819	204.0097	1,428.07	74,463.55
04	0.0000	39.3360	210.7291	1,475.10	76,916.13
05	0.0000	40.5840	217.4143	1,521.90	79,356.22

06/27/2022 MPS1 MELROSE SU S25 MPS1 - SGT Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used. A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	38.8435	208.0899	1,456.63	75,952.82
04	0.0000	40.1229	214.9437	1,504.61	78,454.45
05	0.0000	41.3957	221.7626	1,552.34	80,943.35

06/27/2022 MPS1 MELROSE SU SGT Change was made by 2.0000% No Dollar amount used. MPS1 - SGT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	35.8853	192.2429	1,345.70	70,168.67
04	0.0000	37.0672	198.5748	1,390.02	72,479.79
05	0.0000	38.2432	204.8744	1,434.12	74,779.15

\*\* END OF REPORT - Generated by Polina Latta \*\*

Report generated: 07/11/2023 11:26 platta Program ID: pmgrstep

#### FY 24

# **CITY OF MELROSE v2021.8 LIVE**



#### **SALARY TABLES**

GRADE/	/					HRS/	HRS/	DAYS/	HRS/	DAYS/	USE
EFF. DATE GROUP/BU RANK	DESCRIPTION	PAY BASIS	FREQUENCY	CALC	PERIODS	DAY	PERIOD	PERIOD	YEAR	YEAR	PCT
07/03/2023 MPS1 MELROSE SU L10	MPS1 - LT	A ANNUAL	W WEEKLY	12	52.0000	7.50	37.50	7.00	1950.00	365.00	N
Change was made by 2.2500%											
No Dollar amount used.											

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	43.7293	234.9060	1,639.85	85,740.69
04	0.0000	45.1696	242.6428	1,693.86	88,564.61
05	0.0000	46.6021	250.3388	1,747.58	91,373.65

07/03/2023 MPS1 MELROSE SU L15 MPS1 - LT Change was made by 2.2500% No Dollar amount used. A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	44.6040	239.6041	1,672.65	87,455.50
04	0.0000	46.0731	247.4956	1,727.74	90,335.90
05	0.0000	47.5344	255.3455	1,782.54	93,201.12

07/03/2023 MPS1 MELROSE SU L20 Change was made by 2.2500% No Dollar amount used. MPS1 - LT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	45.4960	244.3962	1,706.10	89,204.61
04	0.0000	46.9944	252.4456	1,762.29	92,142.64
05	0.0000	48.4851	260.4525	1,818.19	95,065.15

07/03/2023 MPS1 MELROSE SU L25 MPS1 - LT Change was made by 2.2500% No Dollar amount used. 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	46.4059	249.2841	1,740.22	90,988.71
04	0.0000	47.9344	257.4944	1,797.54	93,985.47
05	0.0000	49.4547	265.6615	1,854.55	96,966.46

Report generated: 07/11/2023 11:27 platta Program ID: pmgrstep



# **SALARY TABLES**

		GRADE/	•					HRS/	HRS/	DAYS/	HRS/	DAYS/	USE
EFF. DATE (	GROUP/BU	RANK	DESCRIPTION	PAY	BASIS	FREQUENCY	CALC	PERIODS DAY	PERIOD	PERIOD	YEAR	YEAR	PCT

07/03/2023 MPS1 MELROSE SU LT Change was made by 2.2500% No Dollar amount used. MPS1 - LT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	42.8720	230.3000	1,607.70	84,059.50
04	0.0000	44.2840	237.8851	1,660.65	86,828.06
05	0.0000	45.6885	245.4301	1,713.32	89,582.00

07/03/2023 MPS1 MELROSE SU S10 Change was made by 2.2500% No Dollar amount used. MPS1 - SGT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	37.6976	202.5047	1,413.66	73,914.23
04	0.0000	38.9392	209.1746	1,460.22	76,348.73
05	0.0000	40.1747	215.8105	1,506.55	78,770.82

07/03/2023 MPS1 MELROSE SU S15 Change was made by 2.2500% No Dollar amount used. 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N MPS1 - SGT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	38.4515	206.5548	1,441.93	75,392.51
04	0.0000	39.7181	213.3581	1,489.43	77,875.70
05	0.0000	40.9781	220.1267	1,536.68	80,346.23



# **SALARY TABLES**

GRADE,	/					HRS/	HRS/	DAYS/	HRS/	DAYS/	USE
EFF. DATE GROUP/BU RANK	DESCRIPTION	PAY BASIS	FREQUENCY	CALC	PERIODS	DAY	PERIOD	PERIOD	YEAR	YEAR	PCT
	MPS1 - SGT	A ANNUAL	W WEEKLY	12	52.0000	7.50	37.50	7.00	1950.00	365.00	N
Change was made by 2.2500%											
No Dollar amount used.											

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	39.2205	210.6859	1,470.77	76,900.37
04	0.0000	40.5123	217.6252	1,519.21	79,433.21
05	0.0000	41.7976	224.5292	1,567.41	81,953.15

07/03/2023 MPS1 MELROSE SU S25 MPS1 - SGT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N Change was made by 2.2500% No Dollar amount used.

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	40.0051	214.8997	1,500.19	78,438.38
04	0.0000	41.3227	221.9777	1,549.60	81,021.87
05	0.0000	42.6336	229.0198	1,598.76	83,592.22

07/03/2023 MPS1 MELROSE SU SGT MPS1 - SGT A ANNUAL W WEEKLY 12 52.0000 7.50 37.50 7.00 1950.00 365.00 N Change was made by 2.2500% No Dollar amount used.

STEP/LEVEL	PERCENT	HOURLY RATE	DAILY RATE	PERIOD SALARY	ANNUAL SALARY
00	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
01	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
02	0.0000	.0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00
03	0.0000	36.9584	198.5341	1,385.94	72,464.94
04	0.0000	38.1757	205.0731	1,431.59	74,851.69
05	0.0000	39.3869	211.5789	1,477.01	77,226.30

\*\* END OF REPORT - Generated by Polina Latta \*\*

Report generated: 07/11/2023 11:27 User: platta Program ID: pmgrstep

		Section 2015
Melrose Superior Officers	)	
v.	)	AAA Case No: 11-390-00967-06
City of Melrose	)	
Re: Comp. Time for Negotiations	}	
	/	

#### SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

In full and final settlement of the above-referenced matter involving compensation for off-duty officers attending collective bargaining sessions, the Melrose Superior Officers ("Union") and the City of Melrose ("City") hereby agree to the following terms:

- 1. The Union shall withdraw with prejudice arbitration number 11 390 00967 06 immediately upon execution of this Agreement.
- 2. The City shall provide Sergeant Charles Byrne with eight (8) hours of so-called "time on the books." Sergeant Burns must use these eight (8) hours of "time on the books" within one (1) calendar year from the date of execution of this Agreement or this time is forfeited. These eight (8) hours of "time on the books" cannot ever be converted to cash under retirement, termination or otherwise, pursuant to the parties' Agreement. "Time on the books" for the purpose of this Agreement, means time off during a regular shift without loss of pay. "Time on the books" does not constitute "wages" under Massachusetts law, nor is it a benefit which may be reasonably expected by employees in this bargaining unit expect by specific agreement with the City.
- 3. Moving forward, any off-duty Union officer (members of the Negotiating Committee) who attends a collective bargaining session (which for the purposes of this Agreement shall mean live meetings to discuss contract terms and not grievance hearings) shall receive "time on the books" totaling one (1) hour for each one (1) hour of participation in negotiations, rounded to the nearest hour of actual participation. Any "time on the books" allotted to an officer under—the circumstances described in this Agreement must be used within one (1) calendar year or it is forfeited. "Time on the books" cannot ever be converted to cash, upon retirement, termination, or otherwise, pursuant to the parties' Agreement.
- 4. This Agreement shall represent a full and final settlement of the matters described herein and shall not constitute prejudice or precedent for any and all matters, pending or future, between the parties. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement constitutes settlement of a disputed claim. By entering into this Agreement, neither the City nor the Union makes any admission of any violation of the collective bargaining agreement between the parties, relevant arbitration awards, or of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 150E or other related

laws and statutes. This Agreement shall not be introduced into any other forum for any reason at any time except for enforcement of its terms.

- 5. The signatories of this Agreement are authorized to bind their principals.
- 6. The parties agree that no other members of the Union, from the beginning of time to the present, are entitled to "time on the books" other than Sergeant Byrne, and any claims by the Union for "time on the books" due for participation in previous collective bargaining sessions are hereby waived forever, with prejudice.
- 7. "Time on the books" may only be used by agreement with the Melrose Police Chief and/or his designee, and at times which, in the Chief's and/or his designee's discretion, are reasonable under the circumstances. Notwithstanding, the Chief agrees to afford members of the Union ample opportunity to utilize "time on the books" within the required calendar year.

For the City of Melrose

Dated: /0/3

For the Union

Dated: 10/30/06



# SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

This agreement is made as of this 23 day of May 2012, by and between the City of Melrose ("City") and the Melrose Police Superior Officers Association ("Union").

- 1. The Union shall withdraw, with prejudice, American Arbitration Association Case No. 11 390 01497 11.
- 2. In connection with police details on any roadway construction project ("project") funded in whole or in part through the Melrose Department of Public Works ("DPW"), the parties agree to the following protocol: (a) when DPW employees are performing said construction work, associated police details shall be paid at a four hour minimum, one hour for each hour after four, and overtime by the hour for any details exceeding eight hours; and (b) when private contractors (i.e., GTA Landscaping, D & R Paving) are performing said construction work, associated police details shall be paid at a four hour minimum, an additional four hours up to eight hours, and overtime by the hour for any details exceeding eight hours.
- 3. Prior to the commencement of any project funded in whole or in part through the DPW, when the City Engineer determines that a preconstruction meeting is warranted given the size and scope of a particular project, the City Engineer shall invite the Chief of Police or his designee to attend such meeting at which time any and all safety issues shall be discussed, and arrangements shall be made for the provision of police details associated with said project.
- 4. In the event an issue of safety arises in connection with the absence of a police detail during any construction project funded in whole or in part by the DPW, a member of the police department with the rank of Sergeant or above shall consult with the City Engineer, and following this consultation shall make a determination if additional details are required. If the City Engineer so desires, he/she may consult with the Chief of Police who shall have the final authority to require additional details, or closure of the road to vehicular traffic, or in rare cases to request that the project work stop until the safety issue is resolved.
- 5. The parties agree that this is a settlement of a disputed claim, and this settlement shall not constitute precedent for any future proceeding, nor shall it be admissible in any future proceedings save for enforcement of its terms.

City of Melrose

Melrose Super or Officers Federation